WARBOYS PARISH COUNCIL

Minutes of the Annual Meeting of **Warboys Parish Council** held on 16th May 2022 at the Parish Centre, Warboys.

PRESENT

Dr S C Withams, Chairman.

Councillors Mrs J M Cole, R J Dykstra, D W England, Ms L A Gifford, S J Green, A Ntuk, J A Parker, P S Potts, Mrs C L Sproats, G C M Willis and Mrs A R Wyatt.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE

District Councillors Mrs A E Costello and Ms C A Lowe.

APOLOGIES

An apology for absence was received on behalf of Councillor Mrs S J Wilcox.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman welcomed Councillor A Ntuk and District Councillors Mrs A E Costello and Ms C A Lowe to their first meeting of the Parish Council as newly elected Members of the Parish Council and Huntingdonshire District Council respectively.

01/22 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN

Upon the motion of Councillor Mrs Cole and seconded by Councillor Ms Gifford, it was

RESOLVED

that Councillor Dr S C Withams be elected Chairman of the Parish Council for the ensuing municipal year.

Councillor Dr Withams signed the declaration of acceptance of office as Chairman of the Council.

Councillor Dr Withams in the Chair.

02/22 APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN

Upon the motion of Councillor Mrs Wyatt and seconded by Councillor Mrs Cole, it was

RESOLVED

that Councillor J A Parker be appointed Vice Chairman of the Parish Council for the ensuing municipal year.

03/22 MINUTES

Upon being moved by Councillor Ms Gifford and seconded by Councillor Green, the Minutes of the meeting held on 11th April 2022 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman

04/22 MEMBERS' INTERESTS

(a) Dispensations

The Clerk referred to the interests registered by Members and the dispensations previously granted by the Council to speak or speak and vote on such matters at meetings which had lapsed with effect from the date of the election on 5th May 2022. A number of Members had submitted applications for renewal of their dispensations for the ensuing 4 years until the next ordinary election of councillors.

RESOLVED

that dispensations be granted to Members as follows until the next ordinary election of councillors in May 2026:-

Councillor	Interest	Dispensation
Mrs J M Cole	Warboys History Society member Friendship Club member Red Tile Wind Farm Trust Director Council Tax Precept	Speak Speak Speak Speak & vote
R J Dykstra	Spouse's allotment tenancy Council Tax Precept	Speak Speak & vote
D W England	Sports Ground trustee and committee Warboys, Pidley & Somersham IDB Onyetts Field Council Tax Precept	Speak Speak Speak Speak & vote
Ms L A Gifford	Council Tax Precept	Speak & vote
S J Green	Council Tax Precept	Speak & vote
A Ntuk	Council Tax Precept	Speak & vote
J A Parker	Chair, Warboys Primary Academy Governing Body	Speak
	Old Village Board School Trust Council Tax Precept	Speak & vote
P S Potts	Council Tax Precept	Speak & vote
Mrs C L Sproats	Council Tax Precept	Speak & vote

Mrs S C Wilcox	Council Tax Precept	Speak & vote
G C M Willis	Great Fen Project volunteer Council Tax Precept	Speak & vote
Dr S C Withams	Day Care Centre management committee & trustee	Speak
	Warboys Local History Society	Speak
	Warboys Archaeological Project	Speak
	Council Tax Precept	Speak & vote
Mrs A R Wyatt	Warboys Community Association chair	Speak
	Warboys Women's Institute	Speak
	Warboys 55 Plus club Secretary	Speak
	Red Tile Wind Farm Trust Director	Speak
	Council Tax Precept	Speak & vote

(b) Declarations

Councillor Mrs Wyatt declared a non-statutory disclosable interest in Minute No. 24/22 (Requests for Financial Assistance – Warboys Community Association) as she was the Chairman of the Association. She had received a dispensation to speak but not vote on matters affecting the organisation.

05/22 CO-OPTION

As there had been only 13 candidates for election to the Parish Council at the election to be held on 5th May, those candidates had been elected unopposed and two vacancies remained unfilled. The Clerk reported that he had invited expressions of interest from members of the public for co-option, as a result of which one application had been received. The person concerned had been asked for complete and return the necessary form showing that he was eligible for membership of the Council but this had yet to be returned.

Under the circumstances, the Clerk indicated that he would invite further expressions of interest to fill the vacancies available.

06/22 MATTERS ARISING

The Council considered the following matters arising from its meeting held on 11th April 2022:-

(a) 66 High Street

Further to Minute No. 218/21(a), the Chairman reported that this item would be considered by the Planning Committee later in the evening as further planning applications had been submitted for the refurbishment of the property.

(b) Bellway Homes

Further to Minute No. 218/21(b), the Clerk reported that a reply had still to be received from Bellway Homes regarding the improvement of the footpath surface that they had installed and the provision of a kissing gate at Jubilee Park.

(c) Bridleways

Further to Minute No. 218/21(c), Members were informed that no progress had been made with the County Council regarding the creation of a permissive bridleway to link bridleways 17 and 18.

(d) Speedwatch Signs

Arising from Minute No. 218/21(d), the Clerk informed Members that information had still to be supplied by the County Council regarding the cost of installing Speedwatch signs at the entrances to the village.

(e) Play Equipment Safety Reports

Further to Minute No. 218/21(e), the Clerk reported that the reports of the safety inspections carried out by PlaySafety had been received. A copy had been forwarded to the Chairman of the Leisure Areas Committee and the reports would be considered by the Committee at their next meeting. In the interim, the Clerk reported that he and the Handymen were pursuing those issues raised by the inspector in his reports.

(f) Shelter Near Jubilee Clock Tower

Further to Minute No. 218/21(f), the Clerk reported that no further information had been received from Councillor Mrs Wilcox as she was awaiting the interpretation of colleagues on the Land Registry documentation received in respect of the land on which the shelter near the Jubilee Clock Tower was located.

(Councillor Parker arrived at this point in the proceedings and signed the declaration of acceptance of office as Vice Chairman of the Council.)

(g) Replacement Parish Centre

Arising from Minute No. 218/21(g), the Clerk reported that he had contacted the District Council's Planning Division and had received an update on the consideration of the planning application for the replacement of the Parish Centre. The application had been dealt with by a number of different planning officers but it was hoped that this would now be progressed more quickly. A copy of the consultation responses received to date had been supplied which the Clerk had forwarded to the Council's Architects.

The Clerk also reported that the Architects were liaising with the drainage consultants on the potential run-off from the new building to meet the requirements of the drainage authority.

(h) Repairs to Lighting Column

Further to Minute No. 218/21(h), the Clerk reported that he would try to expedite the installation by Balfour Beatty of a new feeder column to replace the one damaged in a vehicle collision at the Clock Tower junction in November.

(i) Felling of Tree in Conservation Area

Further to Minute No. 218/21(j), the Clerk reported that he had returned a signed witness statement in respect of the unauthorised felling of a tree in the garden of 32 High Street which suggested that the District Council intended to take action through the courts as the tree had been situated in a conservation area.

(j) Proposed Development off Station Road

Further to Minute No. 218/21(j), the Clerk reported that the notification of the statutory consultation for the planning application to develop land at Station Road had been received late on 13th May. This had been forwarded to Cheffins to enable them to prepare their report to the Parish Council with regard to the proposed development.

Members agreed that a special meeting of the Planning Committee should be held to consider the application in view of the opposition locally to the proposal with members of the public given an opportunity to address the Committee prior to the application being discussed. The Clerk indicated that he would arrange the meeting with the Chairman of the Committee as soon as it was known when the report from Cheffins would be available.

As comments were already being posted on Facebook by residents about the application and the Parish Council's response, the Clerk indicated that he would supply information that could be posted on the Parish Council's Facebook page by Councillor Ms Gifford.

(Councillor Willis arrived at this point in the proceedings.)

(k) Holiday Sports Club

Further to Minute No. 218/21(m), the Clerk reported that he would liaise with Finding Fitness to progress the holiday sports club to be held at the school for two weeks commencing on 1st August.

(1) Mahaddie Way – Additional Bin

Further to Minute No. 218/21(n), the Clerk reported that David Wilson Homes had paid a contribution towards an additional litter bin on phase II of their development at Mahaddie Way which had subsequently been installed by the Handymen.

(m) Broadband Installation

Further to Minute No. 218/21(p), the Clerk reported that it appeared unlikely that County Broadband would be continuing with the plans to install broadband in

Warboys. However, Gigaclear were progressing with the installation of the main cabinet for their broadband installation plans and it appeared that that BT Openreach had also started work to install broadband connectivity.

(n) Queen's Platinum Jubilee

Further to Minute No. 218/21(q), Members were informed that the working party would be meeting to finalise the arrangements for the service and beacon lighting on the evening of 2nd June to celebrate the Queen's Platinum Jubilee.

(o) Jubilee Park – Fencing of Play Equipment

Arising from Minute No. 218/21(r), the Clerk reported that he was awaiting a final quotation for the potential fencing of the area containing the play equipment at Jubilee Park and a report would be submitted to the next meeting.

(p) Onyetts Field

Further to Minute No 227/21, the Clerk reported that he would be inviting expressions of interest from members of the public in the maintenance of Onyetts Field but that two people had already volunteered.

Following information from a member of the public that motor bikes were being driven around the field, the Clerk reported that the Handymen had installed posts at the unauthorised access point from Fenton Road which hopefully would prevent future access by motor vehicles.

(q) Funded Pond Conservation Project

Further to Minute No. 228/21, the Clerk reported that he had contacted the Bedfordshire, Cambridgeshire and Northamptonshire Wildlife Trust about the possibility of financial assistance towards the creation of a second pond at Onyetts Field and the dredging of the Heath Pond.

(r) Parish Centre – Water Supply

Further to Minute No. 230/21, the Clerk reported that the leak detection company had identified the location of the leak in the water supply to the Parish Centre and adjoining buildings. This had been at the junction of the main supply and the spur to the automated public convenience that had been removed some years previously.

As the junction was located under the library car park, the County Council had arranged for a temporary and subsequent permanent repair. The Clerk reported that he would now be taking steps to try to recover the cost of the excess water charges made by Source for Business.

07/22 APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEES

RESOLVED

(a) that Members be appointed to Committees for the ensuing municipal year as follows:-

Allotments Committee

Councillors Mrs J M Cole, R J Dykstra, Ms L A Gifford, A Ntuk, J A Parker, P S Potts, Mrs C L Sproats, Mrs S J Wilcox and Dr S C Withams.

Finance and General Purposes Committee

Councillors Mrs J M Cole, R J Dykstra, D W England, Ms L A Gifford, S J Green, A Ntuk, J A Parker, P S Potts, Mrs C L Sproats, Mrs S J Wilcox, G C M Willis, Dr S C Withams and Mrs A R Wyatt.

Leisure Areas Committee

Councillors Mrs J M Cole, R J Dykstra, D W England, Ms L A Gifford, A Ntuk, J A Parker, Mrs C L Sproats, Mrs S J Wilcox, G C M Willis, Dr S C Withams and Mrs A R Wyatt.

Planning Committee

Councillors Mrs J M Cole, R J Dykstra, D W England, Ms L A Gifford, S J Green, A Ntuk, J A Parker, P S Potts, Mrs C L Sproats, Mrs S J Wilcox, G C M Willis, Dr S C Withams and Mrs A R Wyatt.

Rights of Way Committee

Councillors Mrs J M Cole, R J Dykstra, Ms L A Gifford, S J Green, A Ntuk, J A Parker, P S Potts, Mrs C L Sproats, Mrs S J Wilcox, Dr S C Withams and Mrs A R Wyatt.

Employment Panel

Councillors Mrs J M Cole, D W England, P S Potts and Mrs S J Wilcox.

Appeals Panel

Councillors J A Parker, P S Potts and Dr S C Withams.

Hearings Panel

Three Members to be appointed by the Clerk on an ad hoc basis.

Appointments Panel

Councillors Mrs J M Cole, Ms L A Gifford, Dr S C Withams and Mrs A R Wyatt.

- (b) that Mr P Bellamy and Mrs F Dykstra be co-opted to the Allotments Committee in a non-voting capacity to represent the Allotments Association;
- (c) that Ms K Simpson be co-opted to the Rights of Way Committee in a non-voting capacity to represent horse riders;
- (d) that Mr M Croucher be co-opted to the Leisure Areas Committee in a non-voting capacity to represent sports clubs; and
- (e) that Members be appointed to working groups for the ensuing municipal year as follows:-

Parish Centre Replacement Working Party

Councillors S J Green and Dr S C Withams and former Councillor R A Payne.

The Weir Working Party

Councillors Mrs J M Cole, D W England and Dr S C Withams, together with Mr R Posey.

Allotments Liaison Group

Councillors Mrs J M Cole, Ms L A Gifford and J A Parker.

Onyetts Field Working Party

Councillors S J Green, Mrs C L Sproats and G C M Willis

Environment Strategy Working Party

Councillors Ms L A Gifford, S J Green and Mrs C L Sproats.

Platinum Jubilee Working Party

Councillors Ms L A Gifford and Mrs C L Sproats.

08/22 REPRESENTATION ON OUTSIDE ORGANISATIONS

A report was circulated by the Clerk with regard to representation on outside organisations for the ensuing year.

Although the Ramsey Area Parish Initiative had not met for several years, District Councillor Mrs Costello advised that she would investigate whether there was support for its re-establishment.

RESOLVED

that appointments/nominations be made to outside bodies for the ensuing municipal year as follows:-

Organisation	Representative
Warboys Community Association	Cllr Ms L A Gifford
Warboys Old Village Board School Trust (until 2024)	Cllr J A Parker
Warboys Day Centre Management Committee	Cllr J A Parker
Warboys Landfill Liaison Group	Cllrs Mrs J M Cole & D W England (dep. the Clerk)
Combined Heat & Power Plant Site Liaison Committee	Cllrs Mrs J M Cole & D W England (dep. the Clerk)
Red Tile Wind Farm Trust Fund Ltd.	Cllrs Mrs J M Cole, P S Potts and Mrs A R Wyatt
Ramsey Area Parish Initiative	Cllrs S J Green & Mrs A R Wyatt
White Hart Bowls Club	Cllr Mrs A R Wyatt

09/22 ATTENDANCES BY COUNCILLORS

Members noted a report by the Clerk (a copy of which had been circulated) listing attendances by Members at meetings of the Council and committees in the previous municipal year in both actual and percentage terms during that time.

It was noted that several Members had been absent from meetings due to the pandemic, owing to the need to self-isolate, illness or work commitments and Councillor Potts had received approval from the Council for his absence for a period due to a family accident. Councillor Willis also pointed out that he had been absent from meetings on occasion to speak on behalf of the Parish Council in support of planning recommendations at meetings of the District Council's Development Management Committee, some of which tended to coincide with Parish Council meetings.

10/22 ELECTION RESULTS

Members were apprised of the results of the election held on 5th May at which Councillors Mrs A E Costello and Ms C A Lowe had been elected to represent the Warboys Ward on Huntingdonshire District Council.

11/22 REPORTS BY COUNTY AND DISTRICT COUNCILLORS

District Councillors Mrs Costello and Ms Lowe reported that a new administration had yet to be formed at the District Council following the election result on 5th May and that the arrangements were likely to be announced at the Council's Annual Meeting on 18th May.

12/22 PLANNING COMMITTEE

RESOLVED

that the Minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 11th April 2022 be received.

13/22 ANNUAL PARISH MEETING

RESOLVED

that the Minutes of the meeting of the Annual Parish Meeting held on 20th April 2022 be received.

14/22 POLICE REPORT

Members' attention was drawn to an on-line survey by the Police for members of the public to complete which would contribute towards the setting of priorities for action by them in Huntingdonshire. An on-line presentation by the Police would be held on 15th June to present the results and help shape police activity. The Police and Crime Commissioner also had invited members of the public to attend an on-line meeting on 11th July to share local community safety concerns. Details of both events had been circulated to Members.

15/22 LOCAL HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME

Further to Minute No. 218/21(k), the Clerk reported that notification had been received from the County Council of the outcome of bids for highway schemes under the Local Highway Improvement programme for 2022/23. The scheme submitted by the Parish Council to secure improvements to the crossing of the A141 using public footpath 6 had scored equal third highest by the County Council in assessing the bids submitted for Huntingdonshire and had therefore been successful.

The County Council had explained that, due to rising costs, less schemes would be supported in the current round of funding and only 22 of the 42 submitted could be funded with their maximum contribution per scheme of £15,000. Under the circumstances, the authority would be reviewing the LHI system over the course of the summer to address the impact of both inflation and staff shortages and invitations to bid for funding in 2023/24 would not be open until 3rd October 2022.

The bid approved for the A141 crossing provided for advanced warning signs for motorists, reflector bollards in the verge at the crossing point, hard standings on both verges to

improve ground conditions and a footpath and handrail on the western approach from Wilthorne. The scheme had been costed at £21,292 which would therefore require a contribution from the Parish Council of £6,292. Due to delays in the implementation of highway schemes caused by staff shortages, Members were involved that it could be some time before the highway officers finally assessed the scheme which could create further cost increases.

The Clerk mentioned that the scheme approved had not included the cutting of the hedge bordering Onyetts Field and he advised that he would make enquiries as to whether this could be funded from normal highway maintenance budgets by the County Council.

RESOLVED

that the report be received and a contribution of £6,292 be approved towards the cost of the scheme.

16/22 TRAFFIC IN THE HIGH STREET

The Clerk reported that correspondence had been received from the residents of a property in the High Street who had expressed concern about the speed of traffic passing through the village following an accident that had occurred in the previous month when a car had demolished a garden wall of a neighbouring property.

Councillor Green reminded Members that, following similar concerns on the part of residents in 2020 and the formation of Residents Against Noisy Traffic, the Council had established a working party with residents invited to attend its meetings. However there had been little interest on the part of the public in attending and the meetings had been discontinued. Councillor Green advised that Speedwatch volunteers now were being approached by members of the public when undertaking monitoring sessions who were raising concerns about the standard of driving through the village.

While acknowledging that the County Council were the responsible highway authority, Councillor Green proposed that the Parish Council engage highway consultants to analyse the extent of the problem in the High Street and suggest proposals that would help to address the issue. The Clerk pointed out that it would not be possible to invite quotations from traffic consultants until a brief had been prepared defining the work required of them and it was therefore

RESOLVED

that a report be submitted for consideration by the Parish Council with a suggested brief for the purpose of inviting quotations from traffic consultants to advise on measures to improve highway safety in the village.

17/22 SPEEDWATCH EQUIPMENT

Councillor Green reported that a number of motorists who had been recorded by Speedwatch volunteers as exceeding the speed limit had challenged the accuracy of the camera being used. Although an assurance had been provided by the suppliers that the

equipment had been calibrated by them and was accurate, Councillor Green asked if the Council would return the equipment to Westcotec to be checked and for a missing bracket to be fitted. The cost would be £172.50 plus VAT.

RESOLVED

that the request be approved and the camera returned to Westcotec to be tested, for a bracket to be fitted and an assurance given as to the accuracy of the equipment.

18/22 TRANSPORT PLAN

Members were informed that the County Council had invited town and parish councils to comment by way of an on-line survey on the preparation of a Huntingdonshire Transport Strategy and Cambridgeshire Active Travel Strategy. Copies of the survey had been circulated to all Members but the nature of questions meant that it would be difficult for these to be discussed in a Council meeting.

It was therefore

RESOLVED

that the Clerk be authorised to respond to the survey after consultation with Councillors Green and Ntuk.

19/22 THE WEIR – ADVERTISING

The Clerk reported the receipt of a request from the Christmas Lighting Group to display banners on the fencing around the Weir prior to the Christmas lights switch-on to generate sponsorship income. The Group had advised that their fund raising had been constrained by the impact of the pandemic and that the sponsorship of banners offered a method of supplementing their expenditure on the Christmas lighting in the village.

The Clerk pointed out that if permission was granted, certain conditions would need to be set in terms of the number of banners, the time during which they would be displayed, their removal after the switch-on, no damage to the fencing and an assurance from the local planning authority that this would not represent a breach of the advertising control regulations.

RESOLVED

that the request by the Christmas Lighting Group be approved in principle, subject to their agreement to suitable terms to ensure that the fencing around the Weir was not damaged and that planning permission was not required.

20/22 FEAST WEEK BAND CONCERT

Members were reminded that due to the impact of the pandemic restrictions, it had not been possible to arrange a concert in Feast Week in either 2020 or 2021. Although Thurstons

funfair hoped to arrange for a dodgems to be installed at this year's event and for this to have been erected in time for a band concert to be potentially held there on Feast Sunday as had happened in earlier years, it was felt that there was too much uncertainty in terms of the timing and a lack of an alternative venue if the dodgems were not available. It was therefore

RESOLVED

that arrangements be made for a free concert to be provided at the Royal Oak on the Sunday of Feast Week and Brightside be asked to perform.

21/22 LITTER BIN IN FLAXEN WALK

Councillor Green reported that he had been informed by residents of Flaxen Walk of the problems of litter at the rear of the estate in the vicinity of the car park/open space and kissing gate of the public footpath to Mahaddie Way. It had been suggested that the litter was being blown from the adjoining car park area for the estate and dropped by youngsters playing on the nearby grassed area.

As the land was owned by the Muir Group Housing Association, the Clerk was requested to ask the company if they would be prepared to install a bin at the location referred to.

22/22 CLIMATE AND ENVIRONMENT STRATEGY

Councillor Mrs Sproats reported that the Environment Strategy Working Party had prepared a draft Climate and Environment Strategy and Action Plan (copies of which had been circulated to Members) for consideration by the Council. Councillor Mrs Sproats suggested that the views of the public be invited on the formulation of the Action Plan and expressions of interest invited in forming a steering group that would be led by the working party to finalise the plan and implement the actions proposed. The need to engage with other organisations and groups within the community was stressed if progress was to be made in addressing the issue of climate change.

Councillor Mrs Sproats was thanked for leading the working party and for the report presented and it was

RESOLVED

that the Climate and Environment Strategy now submitted be approved and consultation be undertaken on the content and implementation of the Action Plan with a view to the establishment of a liaison group of interested persons to work with the working party on the issue of the environment and climate change.

23/22 CAMBRIDGESHIRE CRIMESTOPPERS

Following an invitation from Cambridgeshire Crimestoppers for volunteers to join a local committee to be established for Cambridgeshire, it was

RESOLVED

that the organisation be informed that Councillor Ntuk had offered to sit on the committee.

24/22 REQUESTS FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

The Clerk submitted a request for financial assistance from Cambridgeshire Libraries towards the costs to be incurred in organising the Summer Reading Scheme at Warboys Library in the school holidays. Members acknowledged that the scheme always had proved popular with young children and been well supported.

The Community Association also had requested a grant towards the cost of the awards for the Best Kept Allotment and Best Front Garden Container competitions which they planned to organise during Feast Week

RESOLVED

- (a) that a grant of £125 be made to Cambridgeshire Libraries towards the Summer Reading Scheme in Warboys in the forthcoming school summer holidays; and
- (b) that a grant of £75 be made to the Community Association towards the prize money for the competitions to be organised during Feast Week.

25/22 STREET NAME CHANGES

Members were informed that the Government had invited views on potential changes to the street naming legislation which would provide greater local involvement for the residents concerned in the event of a proposal to alter the name of the street where they lived. A copy of the relevant extract from the consultation paper explaining the existing and proposed ways of altering the name of an existing street had been circulated to all Members.

RESOLVED

that the Government be informed that the Council supports the change proposed.

26/22 OPEN FORUM

The Clerk reported that there were no matters raised at the Open Forum following the previous meeting of the Council.

27/22 ACCOUNTS

Upon being moved by Councillor Green and seconded by Councillor Potts, it was

RESOLVED

(a) that the following acc	counts be approved:-	£
W E Batterbee	Salary – April 2022	1,098.32
D A Warwick	Salary – April 2022	1,152.45
R Edwards	Salary – April 2022	354.40
R Reeves	Salary - April 2022	1,064.06
HMRC	Tax & NIC – April 2022	1,461.79
R Reeves	Reimbursement – Zoom subscription	14.39
R Reeves	Reimbursement – Replacement grill pan handle	32.22
R Reeves	Reimbursement – Paper	51.96
Vodafone	Mobile phone contract (paid by direct debit)	11.11
E.ON	Electricity supply - Parish Centre (paid by direct debit)	78.00
E.ON	Gas supply - Parish Centre (paid by direct debit)	111.96
Chess ICT Ltd.	IT support (paid by direct debit)	69.25
Allstar	Fuel (paid by direct debit)	113.70
Allstar	Ecopoint (paid by direct debit)	5.02
Total Gas & Power	UMS 1 street lighting electricity supply (April)	5.75
Total Gas & Power	UMS 3 street lighting electricity supply (April)	5.08
Playsafety Ltd.	Playground equipment inspections	403.20
Roy Parker Garden Services	Grass cutting	280.00
Citizens Advice Rural Cambs	Grant	100.00

	Anglia's ren's Hospices	Grant	100.00
Leeds	Day	Legal fees (Onyett's Field)	357.60
Aquaf	low Warboys	Plumbing repair – Parish Centre	159.48
ESPO		Miscellaneous supplies	180.66
(b)	that payment of the meeting be endorsed:	following amount required before the da	te of the
The L	eak Specialists	Parish Centre leak detection (50% balance of cost)	417.00

28/22 BUDGETARY CONTROL

The Council received the budgetary control statements for the 2021/22 closedown and April 2022, together with the list of Parish Centre bookings for that month, copies of which had been circulated to all Members.

There being no further business, the meeting was declared closed.

Chairman.